
    

 
 

 
 

 
                    

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO THE FLAG.  The Chairman, Norma Wells, called the meeting to 
order and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag at 7:00 PM. 
  
ROLL CALL.  Members present were Councilors Wells, Smith, Bowie, Mason, Henry, Crafts, and 
Larochelle.  Also present were David Brooks, Interim Town Manager; Ryan Leighton, Town 
Engineer; and approximately three citizens in the audience.   
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

LISBON CODE CHAPTER 30 RECREATION & PARKS SECTION 30-81 
LIBRARY GARDEN 

 
The Chairman opened the public hearing.  There were no comments.  The Chairman closed the 
public hearing. 

 
RENEWAL SPECIAL ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT & LIQUOR LICENSE 

 
The Chairman opened the public hearing.  There were no comments.  The Chairman closed the 
public hearing. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
VOTE (2007-164) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adopt the following 
consent items:  A. Minutes of September 18, 2007, and B. Renewal Special Entertainment Permit & 
Liquor License for the Left Hand Club.  Order passed - Vote 7-0. 
 

COUNCIL ORDERS, ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 

LISBON CODE CHAPTER 30 RECREATION & PARKS SECTION 30-81 
LIBRARY GARDEN 

 
VOTE (2007-165) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adopt the 
Bookworm Bend Garden as a Town Park and that Lisbon Code Chapter 30 Recreation and Parks, 
Section 30-81, be amended to include the following:   (9) Bookworm Bend Garden: Map U-5 Lots 
141-142.   
 
Councilor Bowie said there was a piece of paper circulating around that included some special rules 
and regulations and asked if these rules and regulations should be added into the ordinance under 
regulations.  Rules have been posted that state the Library Garden is for Library patrons only during 
Library hours and children should be attended.  Mr. Brooks offered to blend that into the revision at 
a later date.  Councilor Bowie said this wasn’t a drastic change from the initial proposal and offered 
to make an amendment.  Councilor Wells suggested Mr. Brooks make the changes and place this 
item on the next agenda.  
  

TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 2, 2007 

Fern Larochelle, Jr., At Large 2007 
Charles Smith, At Large 2008 

Michael Bowie, At Large 2009  
Gina Mason, District 1 2007 
Janet Henry, District 1 2009 
Dale Crafts, District 2 2007 

Norma Wells, District 2 2009 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 October 2, 2007 

Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to table this order until the next agenda.  
Motion to table passed, Vote 7-0. 

 
PROCESSING ABSENTEE BALLOTS FOR THE NOVEMBER ELECTION 

 
VOTE (2007-166) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to authorize the Town 
Clerk to process absentee ballots on the day immediately prior to Election Day, November 5, 2007, at 7:00 PM 
at the Town Hall in accordance with Title 21-A Section 760-B.  Order passed – Vote 7-0. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. PURCHASING POLICY DISCUSSION 
 
Councilor Wells pointed out a few changes, and highlighted Section 86-31A, which basically makes 
the Department Heads a little more accountable for what they are purchasing and that when 
something is not a budgeted item budgeted for during the previous year’s budget deliberations, 
they need to come to the Town Manager and Council for permission to go above and beyond their 
budget.  This will help the Council and Departments manage budgets better.  Councilor Bowie said 
this was a policy and not an ordinance, which has been talked about several times.  Councilor Wells 
said this will require Department Heads to have purchase orders signed by the Town Manager prior 
to ordering items over $500; however it would not stop Department Heads in the case of an 
emergency from continuing to operate.   Councilor Wells said if there were no further questions or 
changes, she would have these changes incorporated into the formal purchasing policy.  No 
objections were noted.  
 

B.  TOWN MANAGER SEARCH – JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
Councilor Wells presented the draft Town Manager’s job description.  Councilor Bowie said he tried 
to add different pieces that related to topics the Council had already talked about in regards to past 
goals and objectives.  Councilor Wells said David Barrett needed this document next Tuesday night.  
Councilor Larochelle said in addition to the job description there was supposed to be a contract to 
review.  Councilor Bowie said that item would be discussed in executive session.  Councilor Wells 
suggested the following changes: 
 

 Paragraph 5:  remove the words “maintenance of sound”. 
 Paragraph 6:  remove the words “Essential Duties and Responsibilities:” and “Examples of 

Work (Illustrative Only):” 
 Paragraph 17: under Performs related work as may be required, remove the words 

“Requirements of Work:”  
 Last paragraph: add “p” to referably. 

 
Councilor Wells said although this covers a lot, it needed something about economic development 
and the growth of the town.  She recommended adding “works with the Economic Development 
Director in an effort to move Lisbon forward in a positive direction.”  Mr. Brooks suggested he/she 
works closely with all department heads to strive in that direction, not specifically one.  Councilor 
Wells said paragraph 4 on the second page addresses this, but does not specifically mention 
promoting Lisbon and bringing in economic growth, which is part of what she wanted added.  She 
recommended adding “and promotes Lisbon to develop future economic growth” under paragraph 
4 on the second page, plus adding in paragraph 6 on page one “works closely with all department 
heads in an effort to move Lisbon forward in a positive direction.”  Councilor Bowie agreed to 
incorporate these changes into the document for the October 9th meeting. 
 

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 October 2, 2007 

Mr. Brooks said the second 90-day agreement to provide General Assistance services was signed.  
He said Lisbon’s County tax was paid on September 19th totaling $547,555.00.  He said the first 
municipal lease agreements came through for the ACO pickup truck and Solid Waste tractor.  The 
Solid Waste lease was $2,595 over the budgeted amount.   
 
Mr. Brooks said the ET Smith parking lot and drainage project approved in FY 07 was allocated 
$5,000; the first phase of this project completed in December 2006 cost $3,500 and was paid out of 
the Public Works Operations Budget.  There is still $5,000 in the budget to do this project on paper, 
however, the project wasn’t completed within that fiscal year and the funds didn’t get carried over 
into this fiscal year.  The bill for the second piece of this project was received in July 2007 for $3,000 
and was coded to contingency since there were no carry forward funds to cover it.   
 
MMA conducted hazardous assessment inspections back in April at Beaver Park, MTM Center, and 
the Teen Center; their August report found hazards at each location, which have been addressed 
with the Park Ranger, MTM Director, and the Fire Chief/Safety Director.  Some corrections will be 
completed in October or November, and some will have to be addressed during the next budget 
process.  There will be more information coming to the Council at a later date. 
 
New video equipment for the Council meeting room has been installed.  Mr. Brooks said part of the 
equipment is located in the Recreation Director’s old office and what’s being recorded in the other 
room is viewed on top of the new video camera so the operator can tell if the equipment is not 
working.    
 
Mr. Brooks addressed the Public Works overtime issue.  He said he created a new reimbursement 
overtime line (11601151) in the Public Works budget so all overtime paid, billed, and reimbursed 
will come from that sub-line.   
 
Mr. Brooks sent out the IT job description to various vendors who provide this type of service and 
three vendors responded.  Johnathan Paul was hired to fill the IT position for the remainder of the 
year.  He reminded the Council they needed to address this issue during the budget process as to 
how they want to proceed (continue to contract) with the IT position in the future. 
 
A sewer line and manhole was damaged behind the Zamore development caused by a broken storm 
water drain; Ryan Leighton has been right on top of it.  Although this is at a very difficult location to 
get to, a contractor has been secured to correct the situation and the budget for emergency repairs is 
sufficient to take care of it. 
 
Mr. Brooks said the MTM Park construction budget presented a problem.  The $15,422.83 carry 
forward amount needed for the project was on the first carry forward list approved July 31st, but 
not on the second list approved August 7th, however, it is clear that the Council intended to carry 
forward $15,422.83 for the MTM Park construction budget.  The Finance Director made it clear that 
because of the documentation produced from the Council’s past votes and actions taken, this 
correction/revision will pass muster with the auditors and the in house reports were fixed to reflect 
the change.   
 
Mr. Brooks recommended the Council invite the Water Department back to discuss notices being 
sent for pennies due.  Councilor Crafts said some of their billing system where it goes through the 
Town Office may contribute to the situation.  Mr. Brooks said one lady received a letter demanding 
payment before even 30 days had expired.  Mr. Brooks said our collection clerks were receiving 
complaints about the Water Department.  Councilor Wells said six months ago this issue was 
addressed with the Water Department and the Council was told then that notices were not going to 
be sent out for under a certain dollar amount.  Councilor Wells asked Mr. Brooks to invite the Water 
Department back again to meet with the Council to work on better serving the residents of Lisbon.   
 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 October 2, 2007 

D. LIBRARY REPOINTING PROJECT 
 
Mr. Brooks handed out estimates for the 2006 Bond Library Re-pointing Project.  The estimate was 
$10,000; however the three bids received ranged from $26,528 to 24,800.  He met with the Librarian, 
Engineer, and the Chief Mechanic at Public Works and is now talking with the vendor who 
submitted bid #3.  He asked bidder #3 to remove the cost for excavation so Lisbon could go out to 
an excavation contractor to obtain a better price.  He said Lisbon would probably get the job done 
for less than $26,000.  Bidder #3 can start in two weeks.  Mr. Brooks said he would like to start this 
process prior to the next Council meeting, and requested permission to use up to $26,800 to 
complete the project.  He reminded the Council there was bond money left to cover this amount. 
 
Councilor Larochelle asked about the 10 year warranty.  Mr. Brooks said he would make sure all the 
documents were signed and completed before the contractor started, including appropriate liability 
coverage and a signed 10 year warranty.  Councilor Wells reaffirmed the Council’s agreement to 
move forward with the Library Re-pointing Project in an amount not to exceed $26,800.   
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – None. 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
VOTE (2007-167) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to appoint Steve 
Warren and Kimberly Allen to the Trails Commission and Lisa Galarneau to the Recreation 
Committee with a term expiring in 2009.  Order passed - Vote 7-0. 
 
VOTE (2007-168) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to appoint the 
following Wardens for the November 6th Election:  Sheila Gray, Ward 1, and Jody Durisko, Ward 2.    
Order passed - Vote 7-0. 
 

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Councilor Bowie mentioned a letter all councilors received from the Town Manager in Mechanic 
Falls discussing the county budget process coming up and the whole communication consolidation 
effort.  He said the whole consolidation process has lost a lot of momentum.  He said this committee 
went over setting up a governing structure that included an advisory and operations group to 
manage the whole thing, but when they got into the funding mechanism they had some real 
interesting discussions.   They built models to try and estimate costs. Some scenarios didn’t include 
ambulance and fire so communities like Lisbon would have had to figure out how to dispatch their 
fire and ambulance.  They looked at several other options plugging in a 50% evaluation and 50% 
population formula, but a lot of the smaller communities would have ended up paying a little bit 
more.  In the end, the committee asked how much would each community pay (what’s the breaking 
point), which produced this formula:  50% evaluation, 50% population, plus capping a community’s 
savings at 15%.  For example, Auburn might save $350,000, but with this formula they could only 
save 15% of that number, which would go to offset the increases to the other communities.  He said 
at their last meeting they were not ready to say let’s go do this.  Right now the Chiefs are being 
tasked with reviewing their data to come up with the number of standard calls received where the 
dispatcher receives a call from the public requesting the services of an officer, because the smaller 
communities feel they do not generate as many calls as Lewiston and Auburn so they want more of 
a pay per call plan.  Back two years ago this data was not available because not everyone was on the 
same system.  Mr. Bowie said he would like the committee to look at a five or ten year picture 
including projected total costs, fearing what might look good for one year might not be the same for 
future years, noting the bigger picture would reveal more accurately potential cost savings or 
increases. 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 October 2, 2007 

Councilor Smith said the process of creating a Regional School Unit has begun.  Councilor Mason 
and he met with the other members of the committee and two co-chairs were chosen: Bob Hill from 
SAD 75 and Martha Poliquin from Lisbon.  At this meeting they broke up into subgroups, one for 
finance, governance, and contracts.   He said this was going to take quite a bit of time.  
 
Councilor Wells said agendas and supporting materials were ready for Council members to pick up 
in their boxes by 5:15 PM Fridays.  Mr. Brooks said the exterior locks have all been changed, and 
pointed out that green bar financial reports were distributed to the Council.  He encouraged the 
Council to get their questions to him before the next Department Head meeting on the 10th so he 
could address the questions at the Department Head meeting.   
 
Councilor Wells said she received a letter from the BMX group who indicated they were working 
with the Recreation Department.  The BMX group requested Councilors send their questions and 
concerns to them now so that they could address them early on and be more prepared to answer 
them at their next meeting with the Council.  Councilor Wells asked Council members to forward 
their questions and concerns to her by November 1st, stating she would forward them on to the BMX 
group.    
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
VOTE (2007-169) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to enter executive 
session per 1 MRSA Section 405(6) (A) & (E) at 8:05 PM.  Order passed – Vote 7-0.   
 
The Council recessed and entered executive session at 8:15 PM.   The legislative recorder was 
dismissed. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
VOTE (2007-170) Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Smith moved to adjourn at 9:15 PM.  
Order passed - Vote 7-0. 
 
   
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Twila Lycette, Town Clerk 

Lifetime Certified Clerk of Maine 
 

These minutes are not verbatim. Cassette tapes are filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 


